
 
 

 
BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
Bonnie J. Batchler 
Robert W. Pautke 
Allen M. Freeman 
 
Fiscal Officer 
Debbie S. Schwey 
 
Administrator 
Timothy P. Hershner 
 

 
 
 

950 Locust Corner Road 
Cincinnati, Ohio 45245 

 
(513) 752.6262 

Fax # (513) 752.8981 
www.piercetownship.org  

Zoning Commission 
Meeting Minutes 
March 1, 2016 

6:30 p.m. 
 

The Zoning Commission of Pierce Township, Clermont County, Ohio met in Public Hearing at 6:30 
p.m., on Tuesday, March 1, 2016, at the Pierce Township Administration Building, 950 Locust Corner Road. 
 
CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 Chairman Stan Shadwell called the meeting to order. Board members answering roll call:  Mr. Paul 
Houston, Mr. Jeff Stitt, Ms. Karen Rebori, Mr. Stan Shadwell, Mr. Dick Schuler and Mr. Tom Sill.  Township 
personnel who were also present: Mr. Tim Hershner, Administrator and Zoning Inspector and Ms. Laura 
Bassett, Administrative Assistant. 
 
 The meeting began with the Pledge of Allegiance.  
 
ZONING COMMISSION CASE Z2016-003 (3645 Merwin Ten Mile Road Property) 
 
 Mr. Shadwell opened the public hearing and explained we have three zone cases to discuss at this public 
hearing.  Mr. Shadwell asked Mr. Hershner to speak about the first zoning case Z2016-003 located at 3645 
Merwin Ten Mile Road.   
 
 Mr. Hershner explained the zone change process and read aloud the Clermont County Planning 
Commission’s recommendation to approve Pierce Township Zoning Case Z2016-003 – Grand Communities 
(Fischer Homes) request for a zone change from Single Family Residential to a Planned Unit Development on 
3645 Merwin Ten Mile Road property. 
 
 Mr. Wisniewski from Grand Communities, Ltd. presented their presentation to the Zoning Commission 
Board and the residents; see attached power point.  Mr. Stitt asked Grand Communities, Ltd if they own the 
land or is the sale contingent on these plans being approved; Mr. Wisniewski stated no they do not own the 
land. 
 
 Mr. Shadwell asked if the board members have any questions for Mr. Wisniewski.  Mr. Schuler asked 
about the letter from the County Engineer; Mr. Wisniewski stated the findings from the Clermont County 
Engineer.  Ms. Rebori asked if the real estate industry picked up enough to put homes like this; Mr. 
Wisniewski stated yes and gave example of Lexington Run in Batavia.  Ms. Rebori asked if the development 
was completed and homes sold; Mr. Wisniewski stated yes. 
 
 Mr. Shadwell asked about the timeframe and both entrances/exits; Mr. Wisniewski stated in phases and 
thoughts are building both style of homes and one entrance/exit at a time. 

http://www.piercetownship.org/


ZONING COMMISSION CASE Z2016-003 (3645 Merwin Ten Mile Road Property) continued 
 
 Mr. Stitt stated the traffic study was completed by the County not the Township.  Mr. Shadwell stressed 
that they are county roads and the township can recommend but the County does not have to do as we ask.  
Mr. Shadwell explained the preliminary plan process and that this is a change in zoning. 
 
 Mr. Hershner explained the PUD steps and how the PUD steps that Legendary Run followed with the 
requirements of the PUD. 
 
 Residents asked questions about changing from SFR to PUD-R, estimated revenue, price ranges for the 
homes, effect on the schools, fire, square footage of the homes, crucial elements, traffic study and zone 
change process.   
 
MOTION 
 
 A motion was made by Mr. Stitt, seconded by Mr. Houston to continue the public hearing to March 8, 
2016 at 6:30 p.m.  Roll call on motion: All aye.  

 
ZONING COMMISSION CASE Z2016-002 (839 Bradbury Road Properties) 
  
 Mr. Shadwell opened the public hearing and explained this second of three zone cases to discuss at this 
public hearing.  Mr. Shadwell asked Mr. Hershner to speak about the second zoning case Z2016-002 located 
at 839 Bradbury Road.   
 
 Mr. Hershner explained about the zone change process and read aloud the Clermont County Planning 
Commission’s recommendation to approve Pierce Township Zoning Case Z2016-002 – Grand Communities 
(Fischer Homes) request for a zone change from Single Family Residential to a Planned Unit Development on 
839 Bradbury Road property. 
 
 Mr. Wisniewski from Grand Communities, Ltd. presented their presentation to the Zoning Commission 
Board and the residents; see attached power point.  Questions asked to Grand Communities from Zoning 
Commission Board on community building, retention pond, hills, sewer access, possible road improvements 
and traffic study. 
 
 Residents asked questions on the land across the street, clear cutting the land, road improvements, lots 
sizes, gross density,  green space, and how many homes to be built.   
 
MOTION 
 
 A motion was made by Mr. Stitt, seconded by Mr. Houston to continue the public hearing to March 10, 
2016 at 6:30 p.m.  Roll call on motion: All aye.  
 
ZONING COMMISSION CASE Z2016-001 (Ludlow Circle Properties) 
 
 Mr. Shadwell opened the public hearing and explained this is third of three zone cases to discuss at this 
public hearing.  Mr. Shadwell asked Mr. Hershner to speak about the third zoning case Z2016-001 located on 
Ludlow Circle. 
 
 Mr. Hershner explained about the zone change process.  Discussion on the recommendation from the 
Clermont County Planning Commission  
 



 Mr. Stitt asked about the square footage of the homes and if they are stick built homes.  Mr. Hershner 
stated 1,600 square feet, manufactured homes.   
 
 Mr. Hollie from HSIG gave his presentation for the text amendment.   
 
 Mr. Houston asked why develop lots since no one else has been able to develop the land.  Mr. Hollie 
stated he would like to build up the neighborhood and township, single and two story single family 1,600 
square feet (Stick Built).  Mr. Sill stated the water runs under 132 east/west gets deeper & deeper.  Mr. Hollie 
stated his engineer will work with Clermont County Water Department and Township on any issues.   
 
 
ZONING COMMISSION CASE Z2016-001 (Ludlow Circle Properties) continued 
 
 Mr. Houston asked both Mr. Hershner and Mr. Hollie if they read the Clermont County Planning 
Commission’s recommendation.  Mr. Hershner read aloud the Clermont County Planning Commission’s 
recommendation to deny Pierce Township Zoning Case Z2016-001 –HSIG request for a text amendment to 
create Ludlow Circle (LC) District.  Mr. Hershner explained why the text amendment to add “LC” district. 
 
 Mr. Stitt asked why not a PUD with an overlay but Mr. Shadwell stated the properties total 2.346 acres 
not 5 acres which a PUD requires.  Mr. Schuler asked about the TR district (how far away) so why not add the 
properties to the TR district.  Mr. Houston stated again the Clermont County Planning Commissions report 
and Mr. Hershner talked about the Clermont County Planning Commission changing the TR District. 
 
 Ms. Rebori asked Mr. Hollie about the basements in the homes and about any other property with the 
same district.  Mr. Hollie stated it depends on the homeowner which they prefer slab or crawl space and Mr. 
Hollie stated no.  Mr. Hollie stated TK Builders would bring the homes in on the property for the homeowner.      
 
Residents asked questions on the denial of the Clermont County Planning Commission, sidewalks, lights, 
water issue and a petition from the residents on the text amendment. 
 
MOTION 
 
 A motion was made by Mr. Stitt, seconded by Mr. Houston to recommend denial of text amendment 
Z2016-001.  Roll call on motion: All aye.  
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
 At 8:45 p.m., Mr. Stitt made a motion, seconded by Ms. Rebori that the meeting be adjourned.  Roll call 
on motion:  All aye.  
 
ATTESTED; 
The foregoing minutes were approved by the Pierce Township 
Zoning Commission on March 1, 2016:  
 
 
 
_______________________________    _________________________ 
Stan Shadwell, Chairman      Date 
Pierce Township Zoning Commission 
 


